
Administrative Offices 
4600 So. Weber River Drive 

Riverdale, Utah  84405 

 
 
Minutes of the Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Redevelopment Agency of 
Riverdale City held Tuesday, January 19, 2010 at 8:58 p.m. at the Riverdale Civic Center, 
4600 South Weber River Drive.      
 
Members Present: Bruce Burrows, Chairman  

David Gibby  
Shelly Jenkins  
Don Hunt 
Norm Searle 
Alan Arnold 

 
Others Present: Larry Hansen, City Administrator; Steve Brooks, City Attorney; Randy 

Daily, Community Development Director; Marilyn Banasky, City Recorder; 
and 12 citizens. 

 
A. Welcome and Roll Call 
Chairman Burrows called the meeting to order and welcomed all those present.  He noted that 
all Board members were present.   
 
B. Open Communications 
Gary Griffiths stated that he was here in regard to the discussion on the theater property.  He 
reported that being on the Council at one time they used the study that Riverdale purchased for 
$150,000 as a guideline to help negotiate with Rocky Mountain Power and putting in their 
substation.  He hoped that whatever development they consider, that they please use the money 
that was invested on the study as a guideline in their decision making.   
 
C. Consent Items 
1. Approval of meeting minutes from the December 15, 2009 RDA meeting.  
 
2. Report on Condition of the Treasury for the month ending December 31, 2009. 
 

Motion:  Ms. Jenkins moved to approve the consent items.  Mr. Gibby seconded the 
motion. 

 
Call the Question:  
The motion passed unanimously. 

 
D. Action Items  
1. Consideration of Use Approval – West Bench Project Area – Cinedome demo and site 

preparation for general retail similar to segment of Riverdale Road east to the River. 
Larry Hansen reported that he included some maps showing the area and parcels that are 
primarily involved in this project and that there are a couple of other parcels that may be 
included in this site.  He stated that sometimes when staff deals with brokers, developers 
and other interested parties they need to keep these things confidential and that is why the 
description of the project is vague.  Mr. Hansen went through the Executive Summary and 



discussed it.  He stated that this site has been discussed for a long time and that they have 
tried to get something done with this site.  Mr. Gibby inquired if access to the Myer’s 
property would be affected.  Mr. Hansen stated that the broker, Dee Hansen, was here and 
could address that issue.   
 
Dee Hansen stated that they were contacted by the owners of the property several months 
ago to broker this property.  He reported that in the last several months the economy has 
changed considerably and it was not an easy task to take this property to market.  He 
explained that they worked closely with the City to understand the overall goals for this 
area and try to facilitate those.  He stated that they were contacted by a group in October as 
an undisclosed buyer who had an interest in this property.  He reported that they have two 
pieces under contract: 1) the 3.66 acres where the Cinedome is  and 2) a 1.4 triangular 
piece.  He stated that he can now disclose that the interested party is the Larry H Miller 
group who recently opened up a Chrysler dealership in the vacant Saturn dealership 
building in Riverdale.   
 
Mr. Arnold inquired if the deal is contingent on the road being given to the group.  Dee 
Hansen reported that one consideration would be in having enough property to 
accommodate their needs and they are currently in the process of working with an architect 
and engineer to get a site plan that will work.  He stated that they are not to that point to 
decide if they would need the road vacated, but that they would apply for that if they need 
it to make the site plan work.  Mr. Arnold stated that his main concern is the access on the 
back side of property.  He suggested that the site plan should have some sort of access that 
is not necessarily as it has been but could possibly be somewhere between the Comcast 
building and the Cinedome property on the back side.  Mr. Gibby stated that he is 
concerned with boxing in the Myer property to the east of the one acre piece and possibly 
lowering the value of that parcel.  Dee Hansen reported that the Myers have a 32 foot right 
of way so the piece wouldn’t be landlocked but that they need to address where access 
would be.  Mr. Gibby stated that if the only access is through a residential area then it 
would destroy the business value of that property.  Mr. Searle inquired if they were looking 
at the Roberts’ property.  Dee Hansen stated that they could be and that they have been 
talking with Mr. and Mrs. Roberts.  Mr. Gibby stated that he would like to see the access 
issues resolved for the Myer, Roberts and Alpine Church properties as a condition of 
approval.  Ms. Jenkins reported that she had the unique opportunity to participate in the 
Herridge study when she was on the Planning Commission and then was on the City 
Council when it was adopted.  She stated that the study states the City needs to look for 
sustainable revenue in the future and that Riverdale needs to come into balance and 
diversify the tax base.  She feels that this development wouldn’t be diversifying the tax 
base and thinks it would be nice to have the opportunity to look at the study again.  Mr. 
Hunt stated he hopes they can protect the surrounding properties and move forward to 
demolish this property.  Mr. Searle expressed concern about a commercial retail business 
being close to a residential area and hopes to address those concerns.  Larry Hansen 
reported that this deal is time sensitive.  He suggested that an accompanying Development 
Agreement could be written that could address their concerns.  He stated that demographics 
of Riverdale Road are a major force to consider and as much as they may want to address 
the Herridge study, Riverdale Road demographics drive the sales tax revenue.  He stated 
that he hopes they don’t look past someone who can perform.  Ms. Jenkins stated that there 
are thought provoking items in the study and that perhaps this could not be just another car 
lot but could give us an identity.  Dee Hansen reported that he appreciates the comments, 
but they need to consider that this is a five acre site that will never be residential or have 

Riverdale RDA Board Meeting 2 January 19, 2010 



office buildings because it’s highest value is a retail use.  He stated that it doesn’t work 
financially for office or residential.  He stated that he thinks this is a great use for the 
property and also feels it is important to see how it can be blended in.  Mr. Gibby inquired 
if it was possible to approve the use based on resolution of access to the Myer’s property 
and access to 1275 West.  Larry Hansen stated that he thinks it could go forward with a 
conditional approval of use, subject to the successful creation of a Development Agreement 
that satisfies the RDA Board and the City Council.   

 
Motion:  Mr. Gibby moved to approve the use conditioned upon resolution of proper 

access (not just being able to drive the property but one that makes business 
sense), for the Myer’s property, Roberts property, and 1275 West including the 
church, in the form of a Development Agreement.  Mr. Hunt seconded the 
motion. 

 
Call the Question:  
The motion passed unanimously. 

 
Ms. Jenkins stated that she would like to see the motion include that design and continuity 
also be included in the Development Agreement.    

 
Amended Motion:  Mr. Gibby moved to amend the motion to include design and 

continuity issues also be included in the Development Agreement.  Mr. 
Hunt agreed as second. 

 
Mr. Arnold stated that he is concerned that access not be a burden on the residential 
community on the back side of the Cinedome.  He wants to ensure that access be given 
through the development and that the church traffic and Roberts don’t go through the 
residential community.   

 
Call the Question:  
The motion passed unanimously. 

 
E. Discretionary items  
None 
 
F. Adjournment 
With no further business to come before the Board at this time, Mr. Gibby moved to adjourn 
the meeting.  Mr. Searle seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  The meeting 
adjourned at approximately 9:52 p.m. 
 
Approved:    March 16, 2010 Attest: 
 
 
______________________________                              ___________________________ 
Bruce Burrows, Chairman Larry Hansen, Executive Director 

Riverdale RDA Board Meeting 3 January 19, 2010 


